
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         June 5, 2017 
Amended 6/2/2017 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  

RUSSELL COUNTY 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 
 

AGENDA – JUNE 5, 2017 
 
 

BOS Board Room                  Regular Meeting               5:00 PM 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) 
 
INVOCATION – Roy Harrison - Gideons 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING……………………………………………………………………………….A-1 
 

1. RC Financial Budget & Tax Rates & Tax Dates for FY2017/2018 
 
AWARDS………………………………………………………………………………………….B-1 
 

1. Lebanon, Honaker, and Castlewood RC High Schools FBLA Student Awards 
 
PRESENTATIONS (Limited to 5 minutes)…………………………………………………..C-1 
 

1. Judge Bush & Judge Ketron – RC Courthouse 
 

2. Sheriff Steve Dye – Sheriff Department Operations 
 

3. Mike Collins – Cleaning the Clinch 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         June 5, 2017 
Amended 6/2/2017 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
 

4. Dick Collins & Elaine Rock – Boys and Girls Club 
 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS........................……………………………………………………..D-1 
 
SPEARHEAD TRAILS 
Shy Kennedy                              3 Year-Term 
 
REGIONAL IDA BOARD 
(2) Members                               4 Year-Term 
 
DANTE COMMUNITY CENTER BOARD MEMBERS 
Earl Jenkins                               2 Year-Term 
Vacant                                        2 Year-Term 
 
CASTLEWOOD WATER & SEWER AUTHORITY  
Darrell Johnson          4 Year-Term 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………E-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of May 1, 2017       

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...E-2 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 

 
1. Regional IDA By-Laws 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. RC Faith-Based Forum on Community Development & Support….……………F-1 
 

2. Lebanon EMS Ordinance……………………………………………………………….F-2 
 

3. Virginia Association of Counties (VACO) Regions 12 & 13 Round Table……..F-3 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         June 5, 2017 
Amended 6/2/2017 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 

4. Dante Downtown Master Plan & Park Design………………………………………F-4 
 

5. Route 82 Name Change to Terry Alsup……………………………………………...F-5 
 

REQUESTS 
 
6. Authorization of Request For Proposal (RFP) of Pictometry Services………..G-1 

 
7. Authorization to Negotiate Recycle Center Land Lease.....................................G-2 

 
8. Authorization for RC Landfill Tree & Brush Tonnage Price……………………..G-3 

 
9. Authorization of Southwest Virginia Chief Local Elected Officials                         

Consortium Agreement with SW VA Workforce Development Board………....G-4 
 

10. Authorization of Engagement Letter with Robinson, Farmer, Cox                               
Associates of the 2017 County-Wide Financial Audit………………………….....G-5 
 

11. Authorization of People Inc. Agreement for Child Development Center in                        
the Swords Creek Community Center……………………………………………….G-6 
 

12. Authorization of Donation to the RC High Schools FBLA National                            
Leadership Conference in Anaheim, CA……….……...……………………………G-7 
 

13. Authorization of Donation to the RC Career & Technology Center                                     
for “SkillsUSA” National Championships in Louisville, Kentucky on                                                                                   
June 19-23, 2017…………………………………………………………………………G-8 

 
14. Authorization for Donation to “Guitars & Good Times” hosted by the                                 

Russell County Medical Center Foundation on June 2, 2017…………………...G-9 
 

15. Authorization for Donation to “Drug & Alcohol Graduation Party……………..G-11 
 

16. Authorization for Donations to Towns for the 4th of July Celebrations……….G-12 
 

17. Authorization of prepayment of July 2017 County expenditures……………....G-13 
 

18. Authorization to open the Honaker and Castlewood Cannery for the                            
2017 Season on July 18th 2017………………………………………………………..G-14 
 

19. Travel Request…………………………………………………………………………...G-15 
 

20. Authorization of RC Planning Commission Plat…………………………………..G-16 
 

MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         June 5, 2017 
Amended 6/2/2017 

Russell County Page 4 
 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS:     

 Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………H 

 RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….I 

 RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... J 

 Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..K 

 RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….L 

 RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..M 

 Conference Center………………………………………………………………………N 

 RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….O 

 RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...P 

 RC Cannery Reports……………………………………………………………………Q 

 RC Building Inspector Reports……………………………………………………….R    



CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by _________________, second by ___________ and duly approved by the 

Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss a prospective personal matter 

pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia and to discuss economic 

development pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(5) and to discuss a litigation matter pursuant to 

Section 2.2-3711(A)(7). 

The vote was: 
Aye:  ________ 
Nay:  ________  

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 

Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 

public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 

Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 

identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 

discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 

requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 

substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 

closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 

convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace -  

Lou Ann Wallace -   

Carl Rhea -  

Steve Breeding -  

David Eaton -  

Rebecca Dye -  

Mark Mitchell - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by _______________, second by _________________ and duly approved by 

the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  _______ 
Nay:  _______ 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 

   Board of Supervisors                         Action Item:  A-1 

137 Highland Drive                                 Presenters - Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

   Meeting: 6/5/17  5:00 PM 
 

 

Public Hearing  
 
1. RC Financial Budget & Tax Rates & Tax Dates for FY 2017/2018 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 RC Financial Budget for FY 2017/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL 
Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 

July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018 

The Russell County Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Proposed Budget is prepared and published for informative and fiscal planning purposes 

only. It does not constitute an obligation or commitment on the part of Board of Supervisors of the county to appropriate any funds 

for that item or purpose. There is no allocation or designation of any funds of this County for any purpose until there has been an  

appropriation for that purpose by the Board of Supervisors. 

Expenditures by Fund Type and Function FY2017  FY2018     Percentage 

 Budget  Proposed Budget     Change 

General Fund 

General Government Administration $ 1,827,812  $ 1,803,076                 -1.3% 

Judicial Administration 2,086,406  2,172,984    4.1% 

Public Safety 6,149,502  6,063,804   - 1.4% 

Environmental Control 2,122,849  1,814,396  -14.5% 

General Services 946,401  952,401    0.6% 

Health and Welfare 1,285,743  1,285,743    0.0% 

Education 9,041,682  9,366,682    3.6% 

Parks, Recreation & Cultural 540,910  556,756      3.0% 

Community Development 397,066  398,066    0.1% 

Non-Departmental 197,347  210,347    6.6% 

Capital Outlay and Transfers 633,821  650,813       3.0% 

Debt Service   998,876            1,070,485     7.2% 
 

 
% 

Total General Fund $ 26,228,415  $ 26,345,553    0.0045% 

 

Special Revenue Funds 

Coal Road Fund $ 150,000  $ 150,000    0.00% 

SWVA ASAP Fund 280,954  280,954 0.00% 

Virginia Public Assistance Fund 4,326,092  5,127,647 18.5% 

Comprehensive Services Act Fund 1,088,731  1,088,731 0.00% 

Workforce Investment Board Fund   2,746,846    2,746,846 0.00% 

Total Special Revenue Funds 8,592,623  9,394,178   9.3% 

 

 
Enterprise Funds 

Canneries 30,000  30,000 0.00% 

Dante Sewer Fund   276,000    276,000 0.00% 

 306,000  306,000 0.00% 

Total Expenditures 35,127,038  36,045,731   2.6%  

 

 
                         Tax Dates 

   2017/2018  
Real Estate, Personal Property, Machine & Tool,   May 25th  
Merchant's Capital, and Mineral Taxes   November 25th  
Mineral Tax Reporting Date   February 1st  

        Tax Rates 

 2017   2018  
Real Estate $ 0.63  $ 0.63  
Mobile Homes $ 0.63  $ 0.63  
Personal Property $ 1.95  $ 1.95  
Machinery & Tools $ 1.65  $ 1.65  
Merchant's Capital $ 0.65  $ 0.65  

 
Authorized by Russell County Board of Supervisors 

 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 

Board of Supervisors Information Item:  B-1 
137 Highland Drive       Presenter: BOS 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 6/5/17   5:00 PM 
 

 

AWARDS – FBLA Awards 
 

Lebanon, Honaker, and Castlewood High Schools FBLA Students  
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Purposes Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

No Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Award Listing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lebanon High School: 
1st Place All State FBLA – Dalton Howard 

FBLA State Qualifiers – Morgan Duty, Walker Dillon, Dan Parks, Hayden Tickle, and Madison 

Varney. 

Castlewood High School: 

$1,000 Crumley Annual Scholarship – Camryn Cook 

Who’s Who in Virginia FBLA – Camryn Cook 

1st Place Electronic Career – Camryn Cook 

1st Place Introduction to Business Presentations – Skylar Roberson, Gunnar Jessee, and Jacob 

Vance. 

1st Place Partnership with Business – Jenna Hall, Lauren McCoy, and Kayla Layne. 

1st Place Publication Design – Rilee Barnette, Dylan Mullins, and Jonah Cornett. 

2nd Place American Enterprise Project –   Brooke Horne, Isaac Phillips, and Gracie Hicks. 

2nd Place Community Service – Madison Ray, Jack Ward, and Peyton Jessee. 

2nd Place E-Business – Sylvia Gray, Meghan Salyers, and Lauren Couch. 

2nd Place Graphic Design – Allison Skeens, Makia Phillips, and Peyton Jessee. 

2nd Place Public Service Announcement – Seth Hylton, Zach Owens, and Cody Meade. 

2nd Place Social Media – Madison Ray and Brady Gilbert 

3rd Place Future Business Leader – Jacob Baker 

5th Place Management Information Systems – Gracie Hicks and Lauren McCoy 

5th Place Computer Game Simulation – Ethan Fields 

Honorable Mention Local Annual Business Report – Jasmine Phillips  

FBLA State Qualifiers – Camryn Cook, Skylar Roberson, Gunnar Jessee, Jacob Vance, Jenna 

Hall, Lauren McCoy, Kayla Lane, Rilee Barnette, Dylan Mullins, Jonah Cornett, Brooke Horne, 

Isaac Phillips, Gracie Hicks, Madison Ray, Jack Ward, Peyton Jessee, Sylvia Gray, Meghan 



Salyers, Lauren Couch, Allison Skeens, Makia Phillips, Seth Helton, Zach Owens, Cody Meade, 

and Brady Gilbert.  

Honaker High School:  

1st Place Introduction to Business Communication – Madison Davis 

1st Place Journalism – Dru-Ann Harris 

2nd Place Banking and Financial Systems – Mason Phillips, Hunter Eaton and Peyton Johnson. 

3rd Place Introduction to Business – Dawson Miller 

3rd Place Advertising – Lauren Hurt 

3rd Place Sales Presentation – Destiny Goodson 

4th Place Parliamentary Procedure – Christian Davis, Jordan Stout, Abigail Smith, and Ethan 

Ray. 

5th Place Agribusiness – Blake Stinson 

Honorable Mention Local Chapter Annual Business Report – Morgan Reynolds, Josh Eaton, and 

Hannah Ball 

3rd Place for Most Outstanding State Chapter – Honaker High School 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 

  Board of Supervisors      Information Item:  C-1 
137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

Meeting: 6/5/17      5:00 PM 
 

 

Presentations 

 
1. Sheriff Steve Dye – Sheriff Department Operations 
 
2. Mike Collins – Cleaning the Clinch 

 
3. Dick Collins & Elaine Rock – Boys and Girls Club 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Presentation – Informational Only. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
No Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Presentations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

 

 
Physical Address:  

130 West Main Street 

Suites 206, 207, 208 

Mailing Address: 
P.O. Box 901 

Orange, Virginia, 22960 

www.naturalcapital.us 
mike@naturalcapital.us 

540-672-2542 (p) 

540-672-2845 (f)
2017 Advisors 

 

Ed Bain 
Charlottesville, VA 

John Conover 

Charlottesville, VA 
Robert “Doc” Hall 

Hondo, TX 

Don King 
Keswick, VA 

Mark Kington 

Orange, VA 
Chandler Van Voorhis 

The Plains, VA 

Roger Voisinet 
Charlottesville, VA 

 

 
 

 

2017 Board of Directors 
 

Al Weed, Chairman 

David Perdue, Vice-Chairman 
Tom Salley, Secretary 

Carol Atchison, Treasurer 

Frank Balint 
Jay Billie 

Fred Circle 

Tee Clarkson 
Rex Edwards 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Chairman Breeden, Members of the Board, and Staff  

FROM: Michael Collins, Executive Director 

RE:  StreamSweepers Clean the Clinch 2017  

DATE:  May 30, 2017 

CC:   Debbie Manzari, Program Manager 

  Frank Kilgore 

   

 

Background 

 

Beginning mid-2016, Center for Natural Capital Staff began meetings with 

Southwest Virginia elected officials, local government staff, and members of the 

community about cleaning the Clinch River and an Appalachian Community Forest 

Energy Hub. Interest in both projects has grown in the last year. Further discussions 

about the Energy Hub are scheduled for the July Russell County BOS meeting. This 

memo focuses on the Clinch River.  

 

Russell County, the Town of St. Paul, and other jurisdictions, organizations, and 

persons wish to prepare for future establishment of a state park on the Clinch River. 

To complement creation of the park, many in the area are interested in obtaining 

Scenic River status. In recent discussions with scenic river staff, the quantity of trash 

in the river bed and banks was raised as an impediment to obtaining this status.  

 

In 2013, the Center for Natural Capital, ecological entrepreneurs based in the 

Northern Piedmont of Virginia, launched a meaningful work training and 

employment program called StreamSweepers (www.streamsweepers.org and 

www.facebook.com/streamsweepers). StreamSweepers provides comprehensive 

removal of trash, junk, and debris of all sizes from the river bed, banks, and public 

access points, using boats, trucks, and heavy equipment. StreamSweepers has grown 

to become the largest river maintenance organization in the mid-Atlantic region, last 

year maintaining 120 miles of rivers in Central Virginia. For 2017 StreamSweepers 

plans on a first-time comprehensive cleaning and assessment of the lower half of the 

http://www.naturalcapital.us/
mailto:mike@naturalcapital.us
http://www.streamsweepers.org/
http://www.facebook.com/streamsweepers


2 

 

Upper Rappahannock River, a portion of the Mattaponi River, and the Clinch River as it flows through Russell 

County. StreamSweepers’ labor force varies based on the needs of the communities where it works and includes 

veteran and active military, jail probationers, and young adults from all walks of life aged 18 to 30.  We also 

host volunteer cleanup days which utilize both adults and children as volunteer labor (restricted to bank cleanup 

only).  

 

Proposed Project 

 

Last fall during low waters Mountain Heritage, Inc of St. Paul, tested the use of two CWP probationers to sweep 

a portion of the river from Old Castlewood to Burton's Ford. This effort was successful, yielding approximately 

600 tires, 500 VDOT bags of trash and a half ton of metal waste on a 9-mile section of the river (total of 18 

miles of river banks) and the results were featured on WCYB and local newspapers. The following proposal is 

based on the results of this effort.  

 

Overview of River Work to be Completed by Responsible Party 

 

 StreamSweepers will train, insure, supervise, utilize and if necessary, pay a work force to complete a 

digital ecological assessment of the river bed, banks, and canopy of the entire portion of the river in 

Russell County. We will consult with scenic rivers staff prior to assessment to determine whether there 

is a need to modify our current data collection protocol to assist in scenic river designation. We are also 

open to modification to this data collection to suit local needs, perhaps to include cultural or other 

features. We will train CWP personnel to be StreamSweepers for this work.  

 StreamSweepers will train, insure, supervise, utilize, and if necessary pay a work force to complete trash 

and junk removal of the 30-mile section from the Rt.80 bridge to Old Castlewood. 

 Blackford Detention Center will be requested to clean from the Tazewell County line to the Rt. 80 

bridge after receiving our training and safety guidelines. Should Blackford not be able to complete this 

work, we have created an additional task force to cover this work.  

 Mountain Heritage's CWP crew will clean from Burton’s Ford to the Guest River. Should that crew not 

be able to complete work to the Guest, we have created an additional task force to cover this work.  

 

Tasks  

 

1. StreamSweepers advertises need for full time seasonal local On Water Manager to supervise the work 

crews.  

2. StreamSweepers staff conducts landowner research and outreach (June). We understand access points 

may include Puckett's Hole, Finney, Nash's Ford, Artrip, Cleveland, Carterton and public roads in 

between. We also understand that the longest stretch without official take outs is from Puckett's Hole to 

Nash's Ford but there are reported to be friendly landowners along the way  every two to four miles to 

assist with access. 

3. Design prototype river cleaning barges/boats/batteaus especially for the Clinch. Normally canoes are 

used for Central Virginia rivers.  

4. StreamSweepers senior staff conducts river reconnaissance (staff rapid float of river looking for large 

trash sites, access points, hazards, etc.) and ecological assessmen.  

5. StreamSweepers hires Project Manager.  

6. On Water Manager trains and orients with Rappahannock River Sweeping.  

7. Fabricate river sweeping barges/boats/batteaus.  

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight



3 

 

8. Russell County procures used StreamSweeper 4WD truck or alternative 4WD vehicle with ~ 9 inches 

clearance and trailer.  

9. Sweepers hired.  

10. Sweepers trained.  

11. Sweepers clean river.  

 

Timeline 

 

  

Task June July August September October 

1. Advertise On 

Water Manager 

X     

2. Landowner 

Outreach 

X X    

3. Design barges X X    

4. Reconnaissance  X X   

5. Hire On Water 

Manager 

 X    

6. On Water 

Manager Training 

 X    

7. Fabricate barges  X X   

8. Procure 

Equipment 

 X    

9. Hire Sweepers  X    

10. Train Sweepers   X   

11. Sweepers 

Clean River 

  X X X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight



4 

 

Budget 

 

 

Tim Lovelace
Highlight



 

 

The Boys & Girls Clubs of the Mountain Empire currently serve over 750 children in four locations: 

Abingdon, VA; Bristol, VA; Bristol, TN; and Bluff City, TN.  They are considering adding a unit in Lebanon 

and would like to see if there is enough interest in the community to warrant further discussions.   

Dick Collins, CEO and Elaine Rock, Senior Vice President of Boys & Girls Clubs of the Mountain Empire 

will be speaking at the Lebanon Rotary Club on Thursday, June 8.  They will provide an overview of the 

programs the Boys & Girls Clubs offer and answer any questions.  All community leaders and parents are 

invited to attend. 

If you are unable to attend the meeting, but have an interest, you may take their online survey.  Go to 

their webpage at boysgirlsclubme.org.  Click on “locations” and go to the “Lebanon” tab.  You will be 

able to access the survey and show your level of interest in having a club in Lebanon.  

 

 



 

Board of Supervisors   Action Item D-1 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 6/5/17  5:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Board Appointments   

Appointments of the RC Board Appointments: 

 
SPEARHEAD TRAILS 
Shy Kennedy                              3 Year-Term 
 
REGIONAL IDA BOARD 
(2) Members                               4 Year-Term 
 
DANTE COMMUNITY CENTER BOARD MEMBERS 
Earl Jenkins                               2 Year-Term 
Vacant                                        2 Year-Term 
 
CASTLEWOOD WATER & SEWER AUTHORITY  
Darrell Johnson                        4 Year-Term 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  

Board Discretion.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 

Motion to appoint Board Members.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Applications 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Board of Supervisors                             Action Item E-1 
137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

   Meeting: 6/5/17      5:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Authorization of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

 Unapproved minutes of May 1, 2017 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 

Board discretion 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 

Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Board Minutes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



May 01, 2017 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, May 01, 

2017 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia.  A closed session was 

held prior to the meeting at 5:00 pm. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Mark Mitchell 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
 
Absent:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO AMEND THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
amend the agenda. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 

enter into closed session pursuant to Virginia code 2.2-3711 for discussion concerning a prospective 

business or industry, land acquisition and actual or probable litigation. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 



Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 

Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information  Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 

discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 

closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Mark Mitchell – AYE 
 

Invocation by Pastor Danny Rhea, Ivy Ridge Chapel followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON VDOT SIX YEAR CONSTRUCTION PLAN FOR 2017/18 TO 2022/23 

Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper for (2) two consecutive weeks, a public hearing was 

held on the VDOT Six Year Construction Plan for 2017/18 to 2022/23.The Chairman opened the public 

hearing to citizen comments. 

 

J.R. Watson, VDOT addressed the Board about the six year plan. 



APPROVAL OF VDOT SIX YEAR CONSTRUCTION PLAN 2017/18 TO 2022/23 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Resolution on the VDOT Six-Year Construction Plan for 2017/2018 to 2022/2023 as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 
Comments provided by: 

Todd Marshall asked that Rt.606, Blanch David Rd. be placed on the six year plan. 

Maxine Kelly stated that she would like to see Rt. 621, Sandy Ridge Rd completed. 

Janice Brown asked that Rt. 714, Franks Hollow Road be considered for the six year plan, she 

commented that it should have been listed 

Jeff Holms asked about the status of 727 Creekside Drive, he asked if it could be completed in sections.  

He also commented that people shouldn’t be allowed to use it if they don’t help with the maintenance. 

Jeffery Holms also commented that traffic should not be allowed on Creekside Drive if they don’t help 

maintain it. 

 Stephen Combs said a portion of Rt. 630 is breaking off, he stated that guardrails should have already 

been put up.   

Oris Christian, Scenic Elk Garden Estates says he has a right of way to travel on Creekside Drive. 

The Chairman closed the public hearing. 

Awards and Recognitions 

The Board presented certificates to the members of the Lebanon High School Wrestling Team for placing 

in the State Wrestling Tournament. 

Presentations 

Mickey Rhea, Russell County Building Official gave a power point presentation outlining how Russell 

County’s current building permit fees compare to surrounding counties.  He added that our building 

permit fees had not been updated or increased since 1975.  Mr. Rhea suggested that the County 

increase the fees to be more in line with other counties. 

APPROVAL TO INCREASE BUILDING PERMIT FEES EFFECTIVE JULY 01, 2017 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve an increase in building fees as recommended by the Building Inspector as follows effective July 
01, 2017. 
 
Increase the cost of a building permit to .10/ per square foot 
Increase the cost of a trade permit to $50.00 
Increase the cost of a singlewide mobile home permit to $130.00 



Increase the cost of a doublewide home permit to .10/ per square foot plus $50.00 trade permit 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye  
Nay:  None 
 
Presentations continued: 
 
Phillip Puckett, Lebanon Life Saving Crew addressed the Board on the shortfalls the lifesaving crew is 
facing and how they could be detrimental to their future.  They have had a significant decrease in calls 
from facilities and patients that generate revenue.  He added that most skilled nursing and assisted 
living facilities have agreements with commercial ambulance services.    He gave several options that 
could be considered to help with the situation, he added that if nothing is done, the LLC may cease to 
exist in near future. 
 
Rob Goldsmith, People, Inc. presented the most recent annual report for People, Inc.   
 
Kim Short, Tourism/Parks and Recreation Coordinator updated the Board on the progress of having the 
Clinch River designated as a scenic river.  There are some problems with trash and debris in some of the 
areas along the river that the Department of Conservation and Recreation viewed that would prohibit 
the designation.   She suggested organizing a comprehensive clean up utilizing some of the county 
resources. 
 
Donna Meade, VPI Extension Office invited everyone to the 6th Annual Bees, Blooms and Bluegrass 
Festival and asked if the Board would consider making a $1000.00 donation.  She stated that the 
activities are free to the public. 
 

APPROVAL TO CONSIDER SPONSORING THE BEES, BLOOMS AND BLUEGRASS FESTIVAL 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the budget committee to consider sponsoring the Bees, Blooms and Bluegrass Festival that 
will be held on the Old Courthouse grounds on June 10, 2017. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 03, 2017 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the April 03, 2017 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 

 
 



 
APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 

 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,172,052.22 including reoccurring and withholdings.                                
. 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
The Chairman opened citizens comment period. 
 
Cameron Cook, Jena Hess, Lauren McCoy and Brook Horne, addressed the Board on the success of the 
Castlewood High School FBLA at the state level.   They are requesting assistance to travel to California 
for national competition. 
 
Andy Smith announced that the Virginia Cattlemen’s Association Annual Field Day will be held in Russell 
County at Stuart, Land and Cattle property.  He explained that they are expecting 750 to 1000 members 
to attend.    He encouraged everyone to attend the event which will be held on July 07, 2017. 
 
Linda Stuart stated that Stuart, Land and Cattle Company is the oldest business in Russell County.  She 
asked that the entire Board attend the Virginia Cattlemen’s Association Annual Field Day and act as 
hosts.  She also added that there is a lot of potential for dollars to come into Russell County as a result of 
this event. 
 
The Chairman closed citizen comment period. 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
  

APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE A LOAN FROM VECDA TO THE RUSSELL COUTNY IDA FOR $1,500,000 FOR 
“PROJECT BELT” 

 
Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a $1,500,000 loan from the Virginia Coalfield Economic Development Authority to the Russell 
County Industrial Development Authority for an economic development project (“Project Belt”). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A MANPOWER AGREEMENT BETWEEN CPWMA AND RUSSELL COUNTY 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the signing of a manpower agreement between Russell County and the Cumberland Plateau 
Waste Management Authority. 
 



The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ALLOCATE FUNDS TO THE CSA IN THE AMOUNT OF $23,599.31 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Rebecca Dye and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
allocate funds in the amount of $23,599.31 to the Russell County CSA. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE THE BUDGET COMMITTEE TO CONSIDER APPROPRIATING FUNDS TO 
COUNTY FBLA ORGANIZATIONS 

 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Mark Mitchell and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the budget committee to consider an appropriation of funds on a per attendee basis to each 
high school FBLA Chapter in the County to assist with expenses to travel to national competition. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Mark Mitchell, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE AN ALLOCATION OF FUNDS TO THE TOWN OF CLEVELAND TO BE 
REIMBURSED BY DCR 

 
Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Mark Mitchell and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
allocate $4000.00 to the Town of Cleveland for walking trail development in partnership with and to be 
reimbursed by the Department of Conservation and Recreation.   
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Mark Mitchell, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO TRANSFER FUND BALANCES CONCERNING VDOT REVENUE SHARING PROJECTS 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Mark Mitchell and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve an authorization to transfer fund balances concerning VDOT revenue sharing projects. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Mark Mitchell. Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 
 

 
 
 
 



APPROVAL OF ALLOCATION OF FUNDS FOR MORNING STAR CIRCLE AND CLINCH MOUNTAIN ROAD  
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Mark Mitchell and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the allocation of $150,000 of FY 16/17 Coal Severance Tax with $100,000 to fund Morning Star 
Circle (Rte. 673) and $50,000 to fund Clinch Mountain Road (Rte. 676) in FY 17/18 VDOT Revenue 
Sharing Projects. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A BYRNE JUSTICE GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $2593.00 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve and allocate funds in the amount of $2593.00 for the Byrne Justice Grant from the Department 
of Criminal Justice Services. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
APPROVAL TO ACCEPT PROPERTY AT THE CORNER OF EAST MAIN ST AND NORTH MILL ST FROM THE 

RUSSELL COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Mark Mitchell and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept a Russell County School Board Resolution conveying the property located at the corner of East 
Main Street and North Mill Street commonly known as 89 East Main Street to the Russell County Board 
of Supervisors. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Mark Mitchell, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  None 
 
 

APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE A FEASABILITY STUDY OF THE COURTHOUSE/JAIL BY THE DEPT. OF 
GENERAL SERVICES 

 
Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the Department of General Services to do a feasibility study of the Russell County Courthouse 
and Jail.                                                            . 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding and Carl Rhea 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO AJOURN 
 



Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was:  
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________                                             ________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                   Chairman 
 



 

Board of Supervisors Action Item E-2 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 6/5/17  5:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s May 2017 Monthly Expenditures: 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  

County’s May 2017 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational services. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 

Motion to approve County’s May 2017 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 May 2017 Monthly Expenditures 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



























 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item  

 137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 6/5/17    5:00 PM 
 
 

 

 
 

Attorney Reports & Requests 

The County Attorney Reports & Request for June 2017: 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. Regional IDA By-Laws 
 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 

Board Discretion.  
 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 

Board Discretion.  
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item F-1 – G-16 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

     Meeting: 6/5/17    5:00 PM 
 
 

 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 

The County Administrator Reports & Request for June 2017: 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
REPORTS 
 

1. RC Faith-Based Forum on Community Development & Support….……………F-1 
 

2. Lebanon EMS Ordinance……………………………………………………………….F-2 
 

3. Virginia Association of Counties (VACO) Regions 12 & 13 Round Table……..F-3 
 

4. Dante Downtown Master Plan & Park Design………………………………………F-4 
 

5. Route 82 Name Change to Terry Alsup……………………………………………...F-5 
 
 
REQUESTS 
 

6. Authorization of Request For Proposal (RFP) of Pictometry Services………..G-1 
 

7. Authorization to Negotiate Recycle Center Land Lease.....................................G-2 
 

8. Authorization for RC Landfill Tree & Brush Tonnage Price……………………..G-3 
 

9. Authorization of Southwest Virginia Chief Local Elected Officials                         
Consortium Agreement with SW VA Workforce Development Board………....G-4 

 
10. Authorization of Engagement Letter with Robinson, Farmer, Cox                               

Associates of the 2017 County-Wide Financial Audit………………………….....G-5 
 

11. Authorization of People Inc. Agreement for Child Development Center in                        
the Swords Creek Community Center……………………………………………….G-6 

 
12. Authorization of Donation to the RC High Schools FBLA National                            

Leadership Conference in Anaheim, CA……….……...……………………………G-7 
 

13. Authorization of Donation to the RC Career & Technology Center                                     
for “SkillsUSA” National Championships in Louisville, Kentucky on                                                                                   
June 19-23, 2017…………………………………………………………………………G-8 

 
14. Authorization for Donation to “Guitars & Good Times” hosted by the                                 

Russell County Medical Center Foundation on June 2, 2017…………………...G-9 
 
 
 



 
15. Authorization for Donation to “Drug & Alcohol Graduation Party……………..G-11 

 
16. Authorization for Donations to Towns for the 4th of July Celebrations……….G-12 

 
17. Authorization of prepayment of July 2017 County expenditures……………....G-13 

 
18. Authorization to open the Honaker and Castlewood Cannery for the                                

2017 Season on July 18th 2017………………………………………………………..G-14 
 

19. Travel Request…………………………………………………………………………...G-15 
 

20. Authorization of RC Planning Commission Plat…………………………………..G-16 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 

Board Discretion.  
 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Various  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.gov 























 

 

The Virginia Association of Counties invites you to join us at the 2017 

VACo Regions 12 & 13 meeting on Thursday, June 29 from 6 to 8 

p.m. at the Washington County Board Auditorium at 1 Government 

Center Place, Abingdon, 24210. 
 

Expected attendance includes Board Chairs, Vice Chairs, Supervisors, 

Legislators, Planning District Commissioners and County 

Administrators and Executive Staff from Bland, Buchanan, Carroll, 

Dickenson, Grayson, Lee, Pulaski, Scott, Smyth, Tazewell, 

Washington, Wise and Wythe counties.  

 
 

VACo 2017 Regions 12 & 13 Meeting Agenda 
 

WELCOME 

Timothy A. Reeves | Supervisor, Wythe County & Region 12 Director, VACo Board of Directors 

Larry R. Mosley | Supervisor, Lee County & Region 13 Director, VACo Board of Directors 

Dean Lynch | Executive Director, VACo 
 

VACo EDUCATION  

TBD 
 

CONVERSATIONS WITH STATE LEGISLATORS (Invited)

Senator Charles W. “Bill” Carrico (40th Senate District) 

Senator Ben Chafin (38th Senate District) 

Senator David R. Suetterlein (19th Senate District) 

Senator William M. Bill Stanley (20th Senate District) 

Delegate Jeffrey L. Campbell (6th House District) 

Delegate Terry G. Kilgore (1st House District) 

Delegate James W. “Will” Morefield (3rd House District) 

Delegate Israel D. O’Quinn (5th House District) 

Delegate Todd E. Pillion (4th House District) 

Delegate Nick Rush (7th House District) 

Delegate Joseph R. Yost (12th House District) 

 

ROUND TABLE DISCUSSION OF LOCAL ISSUES 

Bland County | Buchanan County | Carroll County | Dickenson County | Grayson County | Lee County  

Pulaski County | Russell County | Scott County | Smyth County | Tazewell County  

Washington County | Wise County | Wythe County 
 

 

 

                       

 

 

                       
 

 

 

                      

Regional Partners 

Sponsored by 



 

V I R G I N I A  P O L Y T E C H N I C  I N S T I T U T E  A N D  S T A T E  U N I V E R S I T Y  

A n  e q u a l  o p p o r t un i t y ,  a f f i r ma t i v e  ac t i o n  i n s t i t u t i on  
 

 Invent the Future 

101 South Main Street, Suite 2  (0450) 

Blacksburg, Virginia 24061 

540/231-5644  Fax: 540/231-6089 

E-mail: cdac@vt.edu 

http://cdac.arch.vt.edu  
 

 

 

 

Dante, VA: Conceptual Downtown Master Plan and Park Design 

 

May 25, 2017; 6:00-7:30pm 

Dante Rescue Squad building 

Dante, VA 24237 

 

Meeting Notes: Community Input Session 
 

Community Vision 

 

In 10-15 years, Dante is a community of… 

 “Paint a Community Picture” 

o Children are playing 

o There is outdoor entertainment 

o People are gathered outdoors  

o Trees and flowers 

o Picnic Area 

o Public restrooms 

 Growth 

o Population increase 

o Diversified age range; more young people 

 Entrepreneurship and new businesses 

o Deli/ Café 

o Outfitter 

o Food truck/ trailer 

o Restaurant 

 Outdoor recreation  

o Fishing 

o Biking  

o Hiking 

o ATVs 

o Game room for youth and older citizens 

 Community tours 

o Coal camp  

o Mining and Railroad Museum 

o History 

o Heritage 

 Improved infrastructure 

o Telecommunications 

o Sidewalks 

o Town does have good roads 

 Regional collaboration 

o Political support 

o Funding 

o Promotion 



 

o Partnership 

 Strong education systems 

o Environmental education 

o Heritage: craft, music, traditional ways 

 Quality housing and open space 

o Existing homes are renovated, vacant lots are cleaned up  

o Better utilized open space 

 Historical significance 

o Historical renovations and conservation 

 Health 

o Access to doctors and healthcare 

o Ample opportunities for fitness and wellness such as trails 

o There are regular events that support a healthy lifestyle (demonstrations, clinics, walk/ 

run events) 

 

Dante’s Downtown: Designing for Success! 

 

Design Achievements: How success is measured for the conceptual downtown and park design 

 Community collaboration; coming together; people supporting each other 

 Encourages new business interest and potential 

 Safe: lighting, visual access 

 Vision is captured in a comprehensive graphic (final report) 

 There are opportunities for social gathering 

 There is a playground  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Character and Quality 

Describe the look and feel of the revitalized downtown area and park 

 

 Colors: Use from Dante Community Association logo 

o Black: Representative of town’s coal heritage 

 C 75% 

 M 68% 

 Y 67%  

 K 90% 

 Index: #000000 

o Rust Orange: Former school’s color 

 C 0% 

 M 92% 

 Y 100%  

 K 0% 

 Index: #FF3300 

 Business types: 

o Market 

o Outfitter 

o Hardware 

 Lighting 

o Black antique 

o Lanterns 

o Possible precedents: Bristol, St. Paul 

 Signage 

o Interpretive 

o Entrance sign off of main road 

o Wayfinding to help people get around (foot and vehicle) 

 Design Elements 

o Remove two dilapidated houses next to depot 

o Visitor parking at depot 

o Renovated depot structure for new business 

o Outdoor seating 

o Playground 

o Open green space; flexible uses 

 Covered pavilion 

 Grills 

 Picnic tables 

 Corn hole 

o Public bathrooms 

o Asphalt surface 

 ½ basketball court (shooting towards railroad tracks, not the road) 

 Option for netting behind the goal 

o Stage viewing 

 Lawn: ‘bring your own chair’ 

 Seating walls?  

o Stage 

 Expanded by 50%  

 Current structure: 25’ wide; 20’ deep 



 

 The orientation works well as is 

 Add small, permanent dance platform in front (rectangle) for Appalachian 

clogging/ flatfoot dancing (~625 ft.2) 

 Larger platform sections to expand dance area on a temporary basis to be 

stored underneath the stage for large performances 

o Creek access behind stage 

o Bridge and pedestrian crosswalk to Steam building 

o Mining and Railroad Museum 

 Structured parking 

 Picnic tables 

o General 

 Fencing: All along railroad from depot to stage; don’t obstruct Santa Train  

 Solar-energy generation: Explore opportunities to incorporate on renovated 

Depot, stage, or new picnic pavilion 

 Incorporate perimeter walking trail throughout the downtown area, from depot to 

steam building, while connecting to potential trails surrounding the community 

 Pedestrian circulation from one end to the other that doesn’t involve walking in 

the road 



 
From: Buchanan, Jeff (VDOT) <Jeff.Buchanan@vdot.virginia.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 17, 2017 9:23 AM 
To: Todd Pillion 
Subject: RE: Russell County Road--Terry Alsup  
  
Good Morning –  
  
John Watson has forwarded the biographical information for Mr. Alsup you received. 
I had spoken with Mr. Smith in Florida as well as Mr Alsup’s sister last week. I had 
expected to receive the information directly, but as long as I have the information 

we can move forward.   
  
I have been in contact with one of the Board of Supervisors in Russell County as 
they will need to pass a resolution in support of the naming. With the biographical 
information we can finalize the resolution, hopefully in time for their next board 

meeting. Residency staff here in Lebanon will then forward some additional 
information and the BOS resolution on to Central office for processing. Since this is 

a primary route, the naming will require Commonwealth Transportation Board 
approval.  
  
So, in short, the process is moving – it will take probably a couple of months 
considering Board schedules, for approval and some additional time for sign 

fabrication and installation. We will keep you posted as the process moves forward. 
If you have questions or need additional information, please contact me. 
  
Regards-   
  
  

Jeff Buchanan, P.E. 

 

Lebanon Assistant Resident Engineer 
Virginia Department of Transportation  
1067 Fincastle Road, Lebanon, VA 24266 
(276) 889 – 7601 (office)   
 
 
jeff.buchanan@vdot.virginia.gov  
  

 

mailto:Jeff.Buchanan@vdot.virginia.gov
mailto:john.bechtold@vdot.virginia.gov


 

  
  
  

  

                   Southwest Virginia 

Chief Local Elected Officials 

 Consortium Agreement 

 
 

  

  

  

  

Southwest Virginia 

Workforce Development Area  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

June 2017  

  
  
  



 

Consortium Agreement  
  

Southwest Virginia Workforce Development Area  
______________________________________________________________________  

  

The purpose of this Agreement is to formalize the creation of the Southwest Virginia 

Workforce Development Area and the Southwest Virginia Chief Elected Officials 

Consortium in accordance Public Law 113-128, the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity 

Act of 2014, Section 106.  It is made and entered into by and between Buchanan County, 

Dickenson County, Lee County, Russell County, Scott County, Tazewell County, Wise 

County, and the City of Norton.  

  

WHEREAS, the respective Boards of Supervisors of the Counties of Buchanan, Dickenson, 

Lee, Russell, Scott, Tazewell and Wise, and the City of Norton have agreed to authorize the 

execution of this Consortium Agreement;  

  

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT FURTHER WITNESSETH:  That for and in  

consideration of the promises and of the mutual benefits to be derived hereunder, that each and 

all of the jurisdictions enumerated immediately above, do hereby reciprocally agree as 

follows:  

  

  

SECTION 1:  CREATION OF THE CONSORTIUM  

  

THERE IS HEREBY CREATED, BY THE UNDERSIGNED Chief Local Elected Official 

of the Counties and City, the Southwest Virginia Chief Local Elected Officials Consortium 

(Consortium), which shall exist under and be subject to the terms and conditions of this 

Consortium Agreement (Agreement), and which constitutes the agreement by the listed 

participating political subdivisions of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  The purpose of the 

Consortium shall be to plan, establish, and operate a Local Workforce Development Area 

(LWDA) and Workforce Development Services Delivery System according to the provisions 

of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014, and the Federal Regulations issued 

by the U.S. Department of Labor for the implementation of the Act together with any and all 

other subsequent and relevant federal and Commonwealth of Virginia statutes, policies and 

interpretations.  

  

SECTION 2:  AREA TO BE SERVED  

  

The Local Workforce Development Area to be served shall be known as the Southwest 

Virginia Workforce Development Area, and shall include the jurisdictions of Buchanan 

County, Dickenson County, Lee County, Russell County, Scott County, Tazewell County, 

Wise County, and the City of Norton.  



 

  

SECTION 3:  STRUCTURE, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONSORTIUM  

 

3.01:  MEMBERSHIP  

  

 The voting members of the Consortium shall be the Chief Local Elected Official of 

each jurisdiction that is a party to this agreement, or that official’s duly appointed 

designee.  The Chair of the Southwest Virginia Workforce Development Board 

(SWVAWDB), formerly the Southwest Virginia Workforce Investment Board, or the 

Chair's duly appointed designee, shall serve as a voting member of the Consortium.  

  

3.02:  TERMS OF OFFICE  

  

The term of office for a Consortium member or designee shall coincide with the 

member's term as chief local elected official for the member jurisdiction.  

  

3.03:  OFFICERS  

  

The Consortium shall elect from its membership a Chair, a Vice-Chair and such other 

officers as may be provided in the Consortium by-laws to serve for a term as may be 

prescribed in the By-Laws.  

  

3.04:  VOTING RIGHTS  

  

Each member jurisdiction shall have one (1) vote on all matters considered by the 

Consortium.   

  

3.05:  MEETINGS  

  

The Consortium shall hold meetings as prescribed in the By-Laws. A quorum is 

required for the Consortium to conduct business.  A quorum shall consist of 50% of the 

CONSORTIUM duly representing member jurisdictions.  Actions of the Consortium 

shall be approved by a simple majority of the members present at the meeting.  

  

3.06:  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES  

  

A.  The Consortium shall collectively perform the following functions 

established for the Chief Local Elected Official, as specified in Public Law 113-

128:  

(1) Shall, at its annual organization meeting, designate a member 

jurisdiction to serve as local grant recipient for the WIOA funds, 



 

and further may designate another entity to serve as fiscal agent for 

the Consortium;   

(2) Receive member nominations and make appointments of members 

to the SWVAWDB in accordance with State criteria. Each member 

jurisdiction of the Consortium shall recommend nominees and 

coordinate with other member jurisdictions to ensure appropriate 

geographic representation. Diversity should be considered when 

appointing members to the SWVAWDB to ensure racial, ethnic, and 

cultural diversity, as well as the diversity of individuals with 

disabilities from labor markets within the LWDA;  

(3) Set policy for the local workforce development system in 

partnership with the SWVAWDB;  

(4) Collaborate with the SWVAWDB to provide oversight of local 

Youth, Adult and Dislocated Worker programs and regional 

workforce development initiatives;  

(5) Approve the budget developed by the SWVAWDB;  

(6) Perform other duties as may be prescribed from time to time for 

Chief Local Elected Officials (CLEO) under the Act or as 

prescribed by the Commonwealth of Virginia; and,  

(7) Establish such by-laws and such other rules as it deems necessary to 

govern its operations.  

  

B.  In partnership with the SWVAWDB, the Consortium shall develop, approve 

and submit all workforce development plans for the Southwest Virginia 

Workforce Development Area.    

  

SECTION 4:  ESTABLISHMENT OF THE SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA WORKFORCE 

DEVELOPMENT BOARD  

  

The Consortium hereby affirms the Southwest Virginia Workforce Development Board 

(formerly the Southwest Virginia Workforce Investment Board under the Workforce 

Investment Act of 1998), incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia as a 

private, non-profit corporation.  Specifications of Board composition and duties shall be set 

forth in a Memorandum of Understanding between the CONSORTIUM and the SWVAWDB.   

 

 SECTION 5:  LIABILITY  

 

  5.01:  LIABILITY  

  

In accordance with the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, the  

Consortium shall be liable for any misuse of funds received under this 

agreement.  Designation of a member jurisdiction or other entity as local grant 

recipient or fiscal agent does not relieve the member jurisdictions of the 



 

Consortium from liability for any misuse of WIOA grant funds.  Each 

consortium member jurisdiction shall be liable only for its share of any loss 

equal to its respective share of WIOA funding.  

  

  5.02:  INSURANCE REQUIREMENT  

  

The Board shall procure and maintain Directors and Officers Liability Insurance 

sufficient to safeguard the Consortium, member jurisdictions, SWVAWDB officers 

and members, and SWVAWDB employees from errors, omissions, and misuse of 

funds received and held by the Consortium, its grant recipient, fiscal agent, and the 

SWVAWDB.   

  

SECTION 6:  TERMINATION  

  

This Agreement shall be terminated upon the repeal of the Workforce Innovation and 

Opportunity Act or successor legislation pertaining to Workforce Development or upon 

mutual consent of at least two thirds (2/3) of the members of the Consortium.  

  

 

SECTION 7:  ADDITION TO/WITHDRAWAL FROM CONSORTIUM 

MEMBERSHIP       

 

   7.01:  NEW MEMBERS   

  

A political subdivision or municipal corporation of the Commonwealth of Virginia 

may petition the Consortium for membership provided that such local jurisdiction is 

part of the LWDA, as designated by the Governor in accordance with the provisions of 

the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act.  

  

7.02:  WITHDRAWAL  

  

Any party to this Agreement shall have the right to withdraw from the Consortium after 

providing at least ninety (90) days written notification to the Consortium.   

  

SECTION 8:  AMENDMENT  

  

This Agreement may be amended with the approval by resolution of the governing body of 

two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Consortium.  

  

SECTION 9:  SEVERABILITY  

  



 

If any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be found void or unenforceable for whatever 

reason by any court of law or equity, it is expressly intended that such provision(s) be 

severable and the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in force and effect.  

  

SECTION 10:  EFFECTIVE DATE  

  

This amended Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2017.   

  

***  

 

This agreement is approved by resolution by the following member jurisdictions of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia:  

  

  

Buchanan County Board of Supervisors           Dickenson County Board of Supervisors

  

 

By____________________________           By___________________________  

  

Title___________________________           Title__________________________  

  

 

Lee County Board of Supervisors                           Russell County Board of Supervisors  

  

By____________________________           By___________________________  

  

Title___________________________           Title__________________________  

  

 

Scott County Board of Supervisors          Tazewell County Board of Supervisors  

       

By____________________________           By___________________________  

  

Title___________________________          Title _________________________ 

   

  

Wise County Board of Supervisors          City of Norton, Virginia       

 

By____________________________                    By___________________________  

  

Title___________________________          Title _________________________ 

    



 
BLACKSBURG OFFICE 

 
GORDON B. JONES, CPA, MEMBER 

 

108 SOUTH PARK                                                    
BLACKSBURG, VIRGINIA  24060                                   

 
GJONES@RFCA.COM 

 TELEPHONE:  (540)552-RFCA (7322)                                    
FAX:  (540)552-0338                                                   

INTERNET:   www.rfca.com 

 

ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES 
 

 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS                                                                                                                     A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 17, 2017 
 
Russell County, Virginia 
Attn:  Mr. Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
P.O. Box 1208 
Lebanon, VA  24266 
 
Dear Mr. Lester: 
 
Herewith, please find an engagement letter for the County’s fiscal year 2017 audit.  If it is agreed 
upon that the letter accurately sets forth the terms of the engagement, please have the letter signed 
by you and by the Chair of the Board and return it to me.  A copy of this letter should be provided to 
the remaining Members of the Board of Supervisors to serve as our communication to those charged 
with governance at the beginning of the engagement.  
 
Thank you for your attention to this matter and we look forward to working with you on the fiscal year 
2017 audit.    
 
Very truly yours, 

 

Gordon B. Jones 
Certified Public Accountant 
Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BLACKSBURG OFFICE         GORDON B. JONES, MEMBER, CPA 
108 SOUTHPARK DRIVE                           TELEPHONE: (540) 552-7322 
BLACKSBURG, VIRGINIA 24060   FAX: (540) 552-0338 
    

E-MAIL: GJONES@RFCA.COM 
INTERNET: WWW.RFCA.COM 

  
 

ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES 
 

 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS                                                                                                                     A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY      
 
 
 
 

May 17, 2017 

 

County of Russell, Virginia 
Attention: Mr. Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
    and Members of the Board 
P.O. Box 1208 
Lebanon, VA 24266 
 

Dear Mr. Lester and Members of the Board of Supervisors: 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the County of Russell, Virginia for the 
year ended June 30, 2017. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented component units School Board and Castlewood Water and Sewage Authority, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, of the County of Russell, Virginia as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2017. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain 
required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the 
County of Russell, Virginia’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the County of Russell, Virginia’s RSI in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will 
consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and will be 
subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:  

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis, if presented 

2) Schedule of OPEB Funding Progress 

3) Schedule of Employer’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 

4) Schedule of Components of and Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios – Component Unit School Board 
(nonprofessional) 

5) Schedule of Employer Contributions 

The budgetary comparison information, presented as RSI, will be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and we will provide an in relation to opinion on it in relation to the financial 
statements, as a whole. 

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the County of 
Russell, Virginia’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole, in a report combined with our auditor’s report on the financial statements:  



1) Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

2) Other Supplementary Information 

The following other information accompanying the financial statements will not be subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements, and our auditor’s report will not provide an opinion or any 
assurance on that other information.  

1) Introductory Sections 

2) Other Statistical Information 

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in 
all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of 
the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. The objective also includes reporting on— 

 Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on 
compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could have 
a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 
1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other 
matters will include a paragraph that states that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing 
of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The 
Uniform Guidance report on internal control over compliance will include a paragraph that states that the purpose of 
the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control over 
compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state 
that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 
the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns, issued the Auditor of Public Accounts of 
the Commonwealth of Virginia; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of the Uniform Guidance, 
and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue written 
reports upon completion of our Single Audit. Our reports will be addressed to management and the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Russell, Virginia. We will make reference to Owens, CPA and Associates, PC and Thrower, 
Blanton, and Associates, PC audits of the Russell County Public Service Authority and the Industrial Development 
Authority of Russell County, respectively, in our report of the financial statements. We cannot provide assurance that 
unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or 
add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the 
reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not 
formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this engagement.  

Audit Procedures—General  

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas 
to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) 
misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the 
government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of 
abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of 
detecting abuse. 



Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements or 
noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit 
is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have 
a direct and material effect on the financial statements or on major programs. However, we will inform the 
appropriate level of management of any material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of 
assets that come to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that 
comes to our attention. We will include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our responsibility as 
auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not 
engaged as auditors. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and 
may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other 
assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. 
The component units Russell County Public Service Authority and the Industrial Development Authority of Russell 
County will not be audited by Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates.  As such, amounts included in the County of Russell, 
Virginia financial statements will be based on the financial statements of the Russell County Public Service Authority 
and the Industrial Development Authority of Russell County. We will request written representations from your 
attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our 
audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards. 

Audit Procedures—Internal Control  

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and 
extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls 
that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements 
and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be 
necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on 
internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the effectiveness 
of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance 
with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. However, our tests will be less in 
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in 
our report on internal control issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance 
internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards, 
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance.  

Audit Procedures—Compliance  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will perform tests of the County of Russell, Virginia’s compliance with provisions of applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures will not be to 
provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued 
pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards applicable 
to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures described in 
the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the County of Russell, Virginia’s major programs. The purpose of these procedures will be to express 
an opinion on the County of Russell, Virginia’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs 
in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

 

 



Other Services  

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and the 
related notes, and the data collection form of the County of Russell, Virginia in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles and the Uniform Guidance based on information provided by you. These nonaudit 
services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the services in accordance with applicable 
professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, and the related notes, and the data collection form services previously defined. We, in our sole 
professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed 
as assuming management responsibilities. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for (1) designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal controls, including 
internal controls over federal awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that 
appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) following laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable 
assurance that government programs are administered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring 
that management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for 
implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles; for the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and all accompanying 
information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and for compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations (including federal statutes) and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements (including award 
agreements). Your responsibilities also include identifying significant contractor relationships in which the contractor 
has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. 

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all 
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information as 
needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance, (3) additional information that we may request for the 
purpose of the audit, and (4) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence.  

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us 
in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during 
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for 
informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees 
who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or 
suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, 
regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with 
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. Management is also responsible for taking timely and 
appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, or abuse that we report. Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is management’s 
responsibility to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of federal awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance 
identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings; and prepare a 
summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior audit 
findings should be available for our review at the time of final fieldwork. 

You are responsible for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying with the compliance 
requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash 
assistance received) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include our report on the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of 
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards that includes our report. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to 
us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards, including its form and content, is stated fairly in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of 
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the 



reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying 
the measurement or presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been engaged to 
report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report on the 
supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary 
information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary 
information that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written 
representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance 
with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in 
accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior 
period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant 
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial 
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit 
Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address 
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or 
studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for 
providing that information.  

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, and related notes, and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in 
the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements, schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements, 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility 
for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior 
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and 
accept responsibility for them.  

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request and 
will locate any documents selected by us for testing.  

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form that 
summarizes our audit findings. It is management’s responsibility to electronically submit the reporting package 
(including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings, 
auditors’ reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse. 
We will coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification. The Data Collection Form and the reporting 
package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditors’ reports or nine months 
after the end of the audit period. 

We will provide copies of our reports to the County; however, management is responsible for distribution of the reports 
and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential 
information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, PLLC and 
constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and 
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the Auditor of Public Accounts 
of the Commonwealth of Virginia or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. 
Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry 
out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation 
will be provided under the supervision of Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, PLLC personnel. Furthermore, upon 
request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may 
intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental 
agencies.  

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release 
date or for any additional period requested by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. If we 
are aware that a federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will 
contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 



We expect to begin our audit on approximately June 5, 2017 and to issue our reports no later than November 30, 2017. 
Gordon B. Jones, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the 
reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.  

Our fee for these services will be in accordance with our contract ($50,000).  That fee is based on anticipated 
cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during 
the audit.  If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate 
before we incur the additional costs. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the County of Russell, Virginia and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with 
the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.  

Very truly yours, 

 
ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES 

 

Gordon B. Jones 
Certified Public Accountant 
Member 

 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the County of Russell, Virginia.  

 

Management signature:    
 
Title: County Administrator   
 
 

Governance signature:    
 
Title: Chair, Board of Supervisors   
 
 
 
 

























































































RUSSELL COUNTY BUILDING OFFICIAL 

137 Highland Dr.  Lebanon, VA 24266 

Tel 276-889-8012  Fax 276-889-8009  
 

UNSAFE BUILDING STATUS REPORT 

UNSAFE BUILDING EVALUATION 

REPORT DATE PROJECT NAME PREPARED BY 

May 12, 2017 Russell County Unsafe 
Building Ordinance 

Bridgett McGlothlin 

 

PHASE 1    EVALUATION AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBMITTED UNSAFE STRUCTURES 

PROPERTY 
OWNER ADDRESS TAX MAP ID 

EVALUATION 
DATE 

Wayne Merlette Bunch Town Rd. Dante, VA  159 RIA 
2138 

May 3, 2016 

Jimmy A 
Marshall Estate 

173 Red Oak Ridge Rd. 
Castlewood, VA 24224 

156 RE 
2880 

February 13, 
2017 

Vivian Cheryl 
Blevins 

Near 145 Red Oak Ridge Rd., 
Castlewood, VA 24224 

156 RE 
2889 

February 13, 
2017 

Harold Fuller 

*Amended 
Owner 

Jesse Hensley 

875-879 Red Oak Ridge Rd, 
Castlewood, VA 24224 

Purchased property February 
25, 2016 

157 RID 
1733 

February 13, 
2017 

Harold Fuller  

*Amended 
Owner 

Jesse Hensley 

933-947 Red Oak Ridge Rd. 
Castlewood, VA 24224 

Purchased property February 
25, 2016 

157 RID 
1734 

February 
13,2017 

Bennie & Judy 
Hill 

181 Red Oak Ridge Rd. 
Castlewood, VA 24224 

156 RE 
2879 

February 
13,2017 

James C. 
Rasnake 

13465 US  Hwy. 19, Lebanon, VA 
24266 

79 L 3460 
A 

February 
13,2017 



Page 2 

 

 LETTER OF NOTIFICATION/RESPONSE 

NOTIFICATION 
LETTER DATE 

NOTIFICATION 
TYPE & DATE  

PROPERTY 
OWNER 

RESPONSE 
DATE RESPONSE 

March 27, 
2017 

Certified 
Mail 

Wayne 
Merlette 

N/A No Response 
Recorded 

April 13, 
2017 

Certified 
Mail 

Jimmy A. 
Marshall 
Estate 

5/8/17 Financially unable 
to clean up 

** Note: Jimmy Marshall Estate Real Estate Tax records indicate payment has 
not been remitted since 2014.  Current balance for this account is: 466.37 

 

April 13, 
2017 

Certified 
Mail 

 

Vivian Cheryl 
Blevins 

4/19/17 Stated intent to 
comply 

 

Note:  30 Day Notification Expiration 5/13/17 

April 13, 
2017 

Certified 
Mail 

 

Harold Fuller 4/19/17 No Longer owned 
property 

May 12, 
2017 

Certified 
Mail 

Jesse Hensley N/A No Response as of 
current date 

April 13, 
2017 

Certified 
Mail 

 

Harold Fuller 4/19/17 No Longer owned 
property 

May 12, 
2017 

Certified 
Mail 

Jesse Hensley N/A No Response as  of 
current date 

April 13, 
2017 

Certified 
Mail 

 

Bennie & Judy 
Hill 

N/A No Response 

April 13, 
2017 

Certified 
Mail 

 

James C. 
Rasnake 

3/25/17 Requested 
Corrections have 
been made 

     



Page 3 

     

PHASE 2   PUBLICATION OF NOTICE 

PROPERTY OWNER PUBLICATION DATE 

Bennie & Judy Hill The Lebanon News 5/17/17 

5/24/17 

Wayne Merlette The Lebanon News 5/24/17 

5/31/17 

   

   

   

   

EBANON NEWS 5/17/18BENNIE & JUDY HILL THE LEBANON NEWS 5/17/18 
    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 4 

 

 

COMPLIANCE   

 

PROPERTY OWNER ADDRESS 

COMPLIANT 

NONCOMPLIANT 

James C. Rasnake 13465 US  Hwy. 19, 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

4-17-17  

Compliant Per Building 
Official Mickey L. Rhea 

   

   

   

   

   

EBANON NEWS 5/17/18BENNIE & JUDY HILL THE LEBANON NEWS 5/17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 5 

 

 

 

 

 

PHASE 3 CORRECTIVE ACTIONS ADMINISTERED BY COUNTY 

PROPERTY OWNER ADDRESS 

DATE OF 
CORRECTIVE 
ACTION 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

EBANON NEWS 5/17/18BENNIE & JUDY HILL THE LEBANON NEWS 5/17/18 
    

 




